A Chartered Accountants
Delo‘tte One International Center
s Tower 3, 27th-32nd floors
Haskins & Sells
Elphinstone Road (West)

Chartered Accountants LLP

Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 226 185 4000
Fax: +91 226 185 4101

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To The Members of DNEG India Media Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit, its total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’ Report but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and approepriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report, that:

a) We have sought and obtained ail the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except of complying with the
requirement of maintaining server physically tocated in India for back-up of books of account
on a daily basis as required pursuant to amendment in Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
on August 5, 2022 - refer note 39(ii)i to the financial statements.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b) above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”, OQur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants LLP

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

V.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 34 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117364W/ W100739)

sl

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 24103999BKENIO9037

Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2024
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of DNEG India
Media Services Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
with reference to the financial statements based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
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being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to financial
statements established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note issued on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the ICAL

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’'s Registration No. 117364W/ W100739)

@zvsLxs oo

Varsha A. Fadte

Partner

(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 24103999BKENIO9037

Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2024
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(iY(@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital work
in progress).

(i)(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(iY(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment (including capital work in progress) were
physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a programme of
verification, which in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant
and Equipment (including capital work in progress) at reasonable intervals having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its activities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(iH(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties (other than immovable properties
where the Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour
of the Company) and hence clause (i) (c¢) of the Order is not applicable.

(iH(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including Right
of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(iY(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)(@) The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

(ii)(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time
during the year, from a bank on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly receivable
statements comprising of period end receivables and sales, submitted by the Company
with such bank, are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of
the respective quarters.

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its employees during the year in respect of
which:
(a) The details are given below:
Particulars Loans
(Rs. in lakhs)
A. Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the
year:
- Others (employees) 1,887.93

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above:
- Others (employees) 1,937.75




Deloitte

Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants LLP

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other entity
during the year.

(b) The terms and conditions of the loans provided to the employees during the year
are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company to its employees, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per
stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted by the Company to its
employees, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the balance
sheet date.

(e) No loan granted by the Company to its employees which has fallen due during the
year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to the overdues of
existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the
year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
and hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company
by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and Other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has
been delay in remittances of Labour Weifare Fund due in 1 case, Professional Tax dues in
2 cases Tax Deducted at Source dues in 2 cases.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom,
Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other material statutory dues applicable to
Company in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

W



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants LLP

(vii)(b)

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)

(ix)(d)

(ix)(e)

()(f)

(x)(a)

(x)(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi)(b)

Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the | Nature of | Forum where dispute is Period to Amount
statue dues pending which the (Rs. in
amount lakhs)
relates
Income Tax | Income Income Tax Appellate AY 2017-18 1,818.19
Act, 1961 Tax Dues Tribunal- Appeals
CIT -Appeal (in respect AY 2017-18 663.41
of Company
amalgamated)
Goods and | GST Dues | Office of the FY 2017-18 to | 266.63
Service Tax Commissioner of GST 2020-21
Act, 2017

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were
obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes
by the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year
and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments) during the
year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of
this report.
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(xi)(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)(a)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

(xvii)

(xviii)

{xix)

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and
covering the period upto March 31, 2024.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company (CIC) as part of the Group as per
the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under clause {xvi)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fail due.
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(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Act or special account in compliance with the provision of
sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of
the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117364W / W100739)

Mool

Varsha A. Fadte
Partner
(Membership No. 103999)
UDIN: 24103999BKENIO9037
Panaji, Goa, September 30, 2024
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Balance sheetasat === L in T Lakhs
[ - R Notes | March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
| Assets -
Nun-currarlt assets I
(a) ngemgq__myﬂmm__"_ e S 4 (a) 2066649 | 20,153.58
__(D)Rightofuseassets Ay | doge2s1| 1522962
jglgaMﬂo_ﬂ_ﬂn_rogress e —— 4(c) 2,102.92 17761
_L]______ = _ - - ] 5 o _4,213.16 4,213.186
_(e) Other intangible assets 15 14346 11244
(A Financial assets S BN
__lloans - N B 1 B 1,188.06 ___T19.16
_____ ii) Others B - A 80400  1,330.89
{g) Deferred tax asset (net) 28d 3,818.93 2,844.11
(h) Income tax assets (net) R - 2183104 = 122570
__{i) Other non-current assets R 8 1.614.71 972.80
Total non-current assets 47.076.28 46,338.97
Current agsets ] it Tl
(a) Financial assets B R i R
ii) Trade recelvables - - ) 2413539 | 15,289.40
| iy Cash and cash equivalents - 10a 2,211.34 | 2,079.39
____iii) Bank balances other than (i) above o L 10b 197 11.34 |
___Iv) Loans o 11 749.68 2500 |
_____v) Other financial assets - - 12 _16,238.75 5,563.06_
@) ‘Other current assets o 13 5,777.49 5211.14
Total current assets - 49,124.62 ~28,179.33
Total assets_ Y 96,199.90 74,518.30 |
Equity and Liabilities - i 1 =
E uity o _ - i
|— (a}_EquIty share capital - - ) 14 | 980796 9.807.96
_(b) Other equity - - ) 15 (25,470.52) (25,984.22)
| Total equity e - (15,662.56)|  (16,176.26)
Liabilitles .
Non-current fiabllities o o b ! [ —— e —————
__(a) Financial liabilities o || ) - I N
i) Borrowd [ R ~ 48,181.55 30,489.40
__liy Lease Liabilities 35 595875 8,824.47
|__(b) Provisions 7 4,530.30 "3.706.10
Total non-current liabilities B T Ea 58,670.60 43,019.97
Curront liabilities B i
~(a) Financial liabilities _ o N |
_ ) Bomowings N A 18,761.43 851323
| i) Lease liabilities - 13 |~ 399862| 563108
iii) Trade payables 1 ) |
- Total outstanding due of Micro enterprises and small enterprises L £ T T I
: - Tolal putstandmp___ue of other than Micro enterpnses andsmallenterprises| 19 |  4,011.89 3 735 90 |
| iv) Other financial liabilities 20 [ 9@8549 il azs 20 |
(b) Other current liabilites B - o 2 16 353.83 | 120,894.04 |
(c) Provisions. ______ B 22 80.60 | 74.14 |
| Total current liabilities - " 53‘?9‘1"'83‘! 47,674.59 |
| Total liabilities - - | T 911,862.46|  90,694.56
| Total equity and liabilities R | 96,199.90 | "72.“5‘1‘[33‘":
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended = ol o= - dftlaidie
e e S Notes | Marchd1,2024 | March 31, 2023
Revenue _ o . p———

Revenue from operations - [ N N 103,367.73 101,885.95
| Other income ) - 24 1,278.26 222.84
Total Income . 104,645.99 102,108.79
Expenses = i L —]
_Employee benefits expense . % 65,873.78 63,579.72 |

Financecosts s e — | 26 6,040.80 | 3,327.21
. Depreciation and amortisation expense — - - = _ 14(a),4(b)& 5] 9,232,112 8,729.00
Otherexpenses - 27 23,974.84 17,212.28
| Totalexpenses . S | 105,121.54 92,848.21
(Loss) / profit before tax | - (475.55)] _  9,260.58
Tax expenses - PR = .- J i
| Currenttax . - 22,04

Deferred tax - — I (978.45) 1,086.17
Total tax expense / (credit) net) — _ (978.45) 1,108.21
|Profit for the year . N 502.90 8,152.37
_Other comprehensive income - - SRSI! S——

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss i) ) . i
_Re-measurement of defined benefitplan B . 1443 __ (311.40),
_Income tax (expense) / creditonthe above (3.63 78.57

Total other comprehensive Income (loss) 10.80 {232.83)
| Total comprehensive income for the year —— = 513.70 7,919.54 |
_Earnings per equity share (in €, Face value T 10 each) R IR S |
_Basic and diluted ) 29 B 051 831
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Cash Flow Stat tfortheyesrended o in T Lakhs
- | Notes | March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from Opeorating activities i ) — DT .| —_
Net (loss) profitbeforetax e (475.56) ~9,260.58
_Adjustmentsfor. B e e [EIR [{BPERCErEa
“Depreciation, amortisation and | impairment expense - -y ’sz3213f B729.01
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net) o o 141660 ! 52596
Gain on modification of lease o ) o (618.58) (9.84)
Bad debts written off [ 87471 1.85
Pravision for doubtful debls and advances o 311.46 400.00 |
Provision for doubtful debts written back o - 1,194.82 |
[Bad & doubtful advances written off S S . &7 I
Interest income (159. 5?) __{153.07)!
Loss on sale of ant and equipments 33.40 1.91
LOS8.0n s3I0 of propent. pantand envpme == 6,040.80 335721
| Operating profit before working capital changes =g 2227273 | 23,286.18 |
Changes in working capital : = |
| (Increase) / Decrease in trade and other receivables (28,037.65)| 2403223 |
{Decrease] ) / Increasa in trade and other payables PP [ (2,145.86) 10.783.82;
Cash generated from operations (1,910.78)]  58,102.23
Tnoome Taxes (paid) / refunds N O | (605.34)| (402.30)|
Net Cash flow (used in) genarated from operating activities (A) {8,516.12) | 57,699.93
| B. Cash flow from Investing activities - EEs———— — . W 1
“Purchase of property, plant and equipments and other lntanglbles assets (lncludlng |
capitaliworkin progress)._ e e ___(6.780.26)] (10,550.55)
| Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . 2160  199.69
“Interest received o . — 586 2217
Fixed deposits (matured) made during the year — (0.63) 549.18
| Payment towards business combination 4 I (47,341, 34)'
| Net Cash used in investing activities (8) S | S [ (6753.43)  "(57.12085)
| 1
| C. Cash flow from Financing activities o i ; = = y
Proceeds from Long-term borrowings o T easTat 10,082.50 |
| Repayment of long term borrowings o (5.356.1 (18.71),
Repayment of lease liabilities e (5.151.88)|  (6,701.66),
F{gweedsfmmsmn-tembarrwngs@eu - _ I ~10,295.89 104 11
Interest paid on lease ligbilities i | | 1,673.63) (1. 62357 5?}|
Financecostspad 1 1,069.83) (825. 27)|
Net cash generated from financing activitfes (C) } 15,401.50 1,017.40 |
‘Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) T 1395 1,596.48
| Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 108 2,079.39 | 470.12 |
| Acquisition through busi combination N - | . | 1279
"Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year T 102 | 2,21134 2,079.39 |
Disclosure as per Ind AS 7 is as follows: g R
1 | Non Cash 1
. - o | March 31,2023 | Cash flow movement | March 31, 2024 !
[Borrowing - Non Current (refer note 16) | 30,488.40 18,357 11 (664.96) 48,181.55 |
Borrowing - Current {refernote18) _r 8,5613.23 10,295.89 (47.69)] 18,761.43 |
Lea:_.e‘!_‘_laulmss (rafar note 35) | 1445556 | (5,151.88)] 653.70 1  9.957.37 |
See accompanying notes to the ﬁnanaal statements 1-41
As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells Chartered Accountants LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended

A Equity sharecapital in ¥ Lakhs
N - 1 _Amount

] March 31, 2022 9 ,807. 96
fCl'lan_ms in eq_‘iﬁ? ‘share capital during lba year

"March 31, 2023 ) 807.96 |
‘“Changes in equily share capital during the year S—

[March3df, 2024 — — ——— —— 9,807.96 |

B. Other equity ____in ¥ Lakhs
; | Reserves and Surplus

Securities | Capital Retained Total
Premlum Reserve Eamings
s e ACCOWNMRC_ L

March 31 __20_2_2____ ) 36,844.62 | (62,296.86) @AQ.S__Z__ZQL | [(33,514.44))
.nggg@i combination unde under oommon control (refer note 3_) | - (389.32) (389.32)
Proﬁt for the year (net of ux] B _ - | 815237 8,152.37
!Other - comprehensive loss for the _year jnet of tax _)_ I - - (232.83 _{232.83)
| March 31, 2023 — 36,844.62 | (62,296.86) (531.98) (25,984.22)
{Profit for the year (net of tax) _ === - 1 s-= 502.90 | _502.80 |
{Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 10.80 | 10.80 |
| March 31, 2024 - 36,844.62 | (62,296.86) (18.28)|  (25470.52)|

C. Description of the nature and purposa of Other Equity:

Capital reserve: Capital reserve mainly represents the amount of net assets acquired over and above consideration paid consequent

to the Scheme of Arangement.
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DNEG India Media Services Limited

Notes forming part of the financial statements
1. General information

DNEG India Media Services Limited (“the Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in India. The Company is the wholly owned subsidiary of DNEG SARL (erstwhile Prime Focus
World N.V.} and the ultimate holding company is Prime Focus Limited (‘PFL"). The Company provides a
variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special effects (VFX), two
dimensions to three dimensions (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to its immediate
holding company and other PFL group companies and to clients in the film, broadcast and commercial
sectors. The address of its registered office is Mainframe IT Park, Building H, Royal Palms, Aarey Colony,
Garegaon (East), Mumbai — 400 065.

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (herein
after referred to as ‘Ind AS’) prescribed under section 133 and other relevant provisions of Companies
Act, 2013.

2.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes in these financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in
use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or

3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the

significance of the inputs to the fair value measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

¢ Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Leve! 1, that are observable for the
assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division 1l of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of products and services and the time between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve (12) months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is its functional currency
and all figures are converted into rupees lakhs rounded off to two decimals except as otherwise stated,

b




DNEG India Media Services Limited

2.3 Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions
considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the
reported income and expenses during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known/ materialise.

2.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services.
Revenue is shown net of applicable taxes. Revenue (Income) is recognised when there is no significant
uncertainty as to its determination or realisation.

2.4.1 Rendering of services

The Company provides a variety of post-production services including digital intermediate, visual special
effects (VFX), two dimensions to three dimensions (2D to 3D) conversion and other technical services to
its immediate holding company and other PFL group companies and to clients in the film, broadcast and
commercial sectors.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognized as the related services are performed and the
revenues from the end of the last billing to the balance sheet date are recognized as unbilled revenues.
Revenue from services provided under fixed price contracts, where the outcome can be estimated
reliably, is recognized following the percentage of completion method, where revenue is recognized in
proportion to the progress of the contract activity. The progress of the contract activity is usually
determined as a proportion of hours spent up to the balance sheet date, which bears to the total hours
estimated for the contract. If losses are expected on contracts these are recognized when such losses
become evident. Further, the Company uses significant judgements while determining the transaction
price allocated to various performance obligations in the revenue contract.

The Company has an agreement with its immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries based on
which it has let out its operational capacity for execution of VFX and 2D to 3D conversion for projects
outsourced at related cost plus fixed margin of 15%. The Company accrues for this revenue based on
actual cost incurred during the period.

Unbilled revenue is included within ‘other financial assets’ and billing in advance is included as deferred
revenue in ‘Other current liabilities’.

2.4.2 Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on
a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.4.3 Rental income

The Company’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating leases is described in note 2.5.1 below.
25 Leasing

2.5.1 The Company as lessor

Leases under which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Lease

contracts where all the risks and rewards are substantially transferred to the lessee, the lease contracts
are classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

k
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For leases under which the Company is an intermediate lessor, the Company accounts for the head-iease
and the sub-lease as two separate contracts. The sub-lease is further classified either as a finance lease
or an operating lease by reference to the right-to-use asset arising from the head-lease.

In respect of assets provided on finance leases, amounts due from lessees are recorded as receivables
at the amount of the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases. In respect of assets given on operating lease, lease rentals are
accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss, on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.

2,5.2 The Company as lessee

The Company enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings, plant and machinery including computer
software. Such arrangements are generally for a fixed period but may have extension or termination
options. The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease, at its inception. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to —

a. control the use of an identified asset,

b. obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset, and

¢. direct the use of the identified asset

The Company determines the lease term as the noncancellable period of a lease, together with pericds
covered by an option to extend the lease, where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option.

The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-to-Use asset at cost and
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short term leases)
and low-value assets. For these short term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The cost of the right-to-use asset comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any lease payments made at or before the inception date of the lease, plus any initial direct costs, less
any lease incentives received.

Subsequently, the right-to-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-to-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-to-use asset.
The estimated useful life of right-to-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property,
plant and equipment.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 to determine whether an right-to-use asset is impaired and accounts for
any identified impairment loss. Refer 2.14 below.

For lease liabilities at the commencement of the lease, the Company measures the lease liability at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, if that rate is not readily
determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate that the Company
would have to pay to borrow funds, including the consideration of factors such as the nature of the asset
and location, collateral, market terms and conditions, as applicable in a similar economic environment.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease paymerits made.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-to-use assets. Where the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount
of the re-measurement in statemnent of profit and loss. Lease liability payments are classified as cash
used in financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

.
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2.6 Foreign currency translation and transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise

except for:

» exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for further
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

« exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks.

27 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.8 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the
Company recognises as expense the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Govermnment grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

The benefit of a government loan at below-market rate of interest is treated as a government grant
measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing
market interest rates.

Government grant under Service Export from India Scheme (SEIS) is given by providing duty scrip credit
for eligible exports. Under the scheme, service providers, located in India, are rewarded under the SEIS
scheme, for all eligible export of services from India. These duty credit scrips can be used for payment of
basic custom duty and are freely transferable.

2.9 Employee benefits

2.9.1 Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
e
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For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit

method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-

measurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with

a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-

measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings

and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a

plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to

the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

* Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

» Net interest expense or income: and

¢ Re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

A liability for termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when the Company recognises any related restructuring costs.

2.9.2 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Aliability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date.

210 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.
2.10.1 Current tax

The current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’' as
reported in the Statemment of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

2.10.2 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part
of the asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

210.3 Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they are related to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

2.11  Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal group are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

212 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE are stated at cost of acquisition ar construction. They are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future
benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standards of performance. All other
expenses on existing PPE, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing
parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values using the straight-line method over their useful lives
estimated by Management, which are similar to useful life prescribed under Schedule Il of the Companies
Act, 2013. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Cost of Leasehold improvements is amortised over a period of [ease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

!
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2.13 Intangible assets
2.13.1 intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separateiy are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are acquired separately and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

2.13.2 Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an

internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all the following have been demonstrated:

* the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

the intention to complete the intangible asset and use it or sell it;

the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and

to use or sell the intangible asset; and

» the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where
no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are separately acquired.

2.13.3 Useful lives of intangible assets

Software is amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life or the license period whichever
is applicable.

2.13.4 De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised.

214 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverabie
amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest of the cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

245 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it Is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to seftle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flow (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.15.1 Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An
onerous contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received
from the contract.

2.15.2 Restructurings

A restructuring provision is recognised when the Company has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by
starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measurement
of a restructuring, which are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not
associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.

216 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financiat liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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217 Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised or de-recognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised ﬂnancial'assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.17.1 Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except

for debt instruments that are designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

* the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For the impairment policy on financial assets measured at amortised cost, refer note 2.17.5

Debt instruments that meets the foliowing conditions are measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (except for debt instruments that are designed as at fair value through

profit or loss (FVTPL) on initial recognition):

¢ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash fiows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments. For the purposes of
recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as financial assets
measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When the investment is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated is reclassified to profit or loss.

For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer Note 2.17.5.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.17.2 Effective interest method

The effective interest is a method of calculating the amortised cost of ciabt instruments and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or reczived that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums‘or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where applicable, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income”
line item.

2.17.3 Investrents in equity instruments at FVTOC!

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevogable election {on 2n instrument-by-instrument
basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to
investments in equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.
These elected investments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes.in fair value recognised in other

comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
investments,

k
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A financial asset is held for trading if:

» it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

s on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Company's
right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognised in profit or loss are included
in the 'Other income' line item.

2.17.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments other than in equity shares in subsidiaries, are classified as FVTPL,
unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value
in other comprehensive income for investments in equity instruments which are not held for trading (see
note 2.17.3 above).

Debt instruments that da not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are
measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI
criteria but are designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial measurement if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different basis. The Company has not designated any
debt instruments at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains
or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the '‘Other
income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the
amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

2.17.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment toss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, other
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at
FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default
oceurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash
flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension,
call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected
credit losses that represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months
after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

b
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If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model
in the previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period  that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the
previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the
financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that
assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under ind AS 109. This expected credit loss
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally
applied to debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

2.17.6 De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial
asset.

On derecognition of financial asset other than its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to
repurchase part of the transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no
longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of
the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to
it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or losses if such gain
or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between
the part that continues to be recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair value
of those parts.

2.17.7 Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of each repotting period.
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» For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as
hedging instruments in a hedging relationship.

e Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes
in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

» For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are
treated as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, exchange differences on the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.17.8 Investment in subsidiaries.

The Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost iess impairment loss (if any).
2.18 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

2.18.1 Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability
and equity instrument.

2.18.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or foss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's
own equity instruments.

2.18.3 Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments (convertible notes) issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recognised as a liability on an
amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole. This is recognised and
included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in
which case, the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to other component of equity. When the
conversion option remains unexercised at the matunty date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
upon conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recogmsed directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

b
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2.18.4 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

However, financial fiabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for de-
recognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued
by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest
rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

2.18.4.1 Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognised by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

« on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

s itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration recognised by

the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies, may be designated

as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

 such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

¢ the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's
documented risk management or mvestment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

s it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and the Ind AS 109 permits
the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability and is included in the 'Other income’ line item.

However, for financial liabilities that are not held for trading and are designated as at FVTPL, the amount
of change in fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognmon of the effects of changes mismatch
in profit or loss, in which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognised in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial Ilabllltys credit risk that are recognised in other
comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently
reclassified in profit or loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are
designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.4.2 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line

item. L
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

2.18.4.3 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair values and, if not

designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment reguirements of Ind AS
109; and

e The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of ind AS 18.

2.18.44 Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are initially measured at their fair values

and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

« the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109;
and

« the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 115.

2.18.4.5 Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income'.

The fair value of financial liabilites denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. For financial liabilities that
are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses
and is recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.46 De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition
of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of a debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of
the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

2.18.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedging relationship and the nature of the hedged item.
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2.18.6 Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non- derivative host contracts that are not financial assets within the scope of
Ind AS 108 are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

219 Eamings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amount is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amount is calculated by dividing the net profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted
average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity
shares into Equity shares.

2.20 New Accounting standards:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from 1st April, 2024.

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management
of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experiences and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

3.1.1  Revenue recognition

The Company also derives revenues from fixed price VFX and 2D to 3D content conversion contracts.
The revenue recognised on these contracts is dependent on the estimated percentage of completion at
a point in time, which is calculated on the basis of the man days of work performed as a percentage of
the estimated total man days to compiete a contract. The actual man days and estimated man days to
complete a contract are updated on a monthly basis.

The estimated man days remaining to complete a project are judgmental in nature and are estimated by
experienced staff using their knowledge of the time necessary to the work.

If a contract is expected to be loss making, based on estimated costs to complete, the expected loss is
recognised immediately.

3.1.2 Taxation

The Company makes estimates in respect of tax liabilities and tax assets. Full provision is made for
deferred and current taxation at the rates of tax prevailing at the year-end unless future rates have been
substantively enacted. These calculations represent the best estimate of the costs that will be incurred
and recovered but actuals may differ from the estimates made and therefore affect future financial results.
The effects would be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets arise in respect of unutilised losses and other timing differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised or to the
extent they can be offset against related deferred tax liabilities. In assessing recoverability, estimation is
made of the future forecasts of taxable profit, including for transactions expected to be consummated
during the current year. If these forecast profits do not materialise, they change, or there are changes in
tax rates or ta the period over which the losses or timing differences might be recognised, then the value
of deferred tax assets will need to be revised in a future period.
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3.1.3 Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Propenrty, plant and equipment are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking
into account their estimated residual value. Intangible assets are amortised over its estimated useful lives.
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to
determine the amount of depreciation/ amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take
into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation/ amortisation for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

3.1.4 Expected credit losses on financial assets

The impairment provision of financial assets are based on assumption about risk of default and expected
timing of collection. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Company's history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness,
existing market condition as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

3.1.5 Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future
outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably
estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgement
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. Since the cash outflows can take
place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly
and adjusted to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

3.1.6 Defined benefit obligations

The costs of providing other post-employment benefits are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
in accordance with Ind AS 19 “Employee benefits” over the period during which benefits is derived from
the employees’ services and is determined based on valuation carried out by independent actuary. The
costs are determined based on assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include
salary escalation rate, discount rates, expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates. Due to the
complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to change in these assumptions.

3.1.7 The Company recognises Goodwill that has arisen through business acquisition.

Goodwill is subject to impairment review to ensure that it is not carried above its recoverable value.
Review is performed at least annually at end of each year end or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that this is necessary.

Impairment review is performed by comparing the carrying value of the cash generating unit with its
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is
valuation derived from the discounted future cash flows of cash generating unit. The most important
estimates in these forecast cash flows are the long term growth rates used to calculate revenue growth
in perpetuity and the discount rates which are applied to the future cash flows. These estimates are
reviewed at least annually and are believed to be appropriate. However, changes in these estimates could
change the outcomes of the impairment reviews and therefore affect future financial results. The effects
would be recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss, through operating profit.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five
year period. Cash flows beyond a five year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates
stated above. (Refer note §5).

"




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

4 (a) Property, plantand equipment =, in 2 Lakhs
| | Plantand | Furniture and| Lease Hold Office |
| equipment fixtures Improvement | equipment Vehicles Total
| 1. Gross block
| March 31, 2023 | 5498812 3,800.02 2,037.10 412221 18746 |  ©65,134.91
| Additions | 325862 91.00 80.58 153.94 422.48 4,006.60
| Adjustments (refer note b below) | 8,670.80 : 5.52 _3.60 | = 9,679.92 |
{Deducton (494.20) (34.88) (3.83) (6.22) - {539.13)|
| March 31,2024 ! 67,423.34 3,856.14 2,119.37 4,273.53 _609.92 78,282.30 |
e e B — e [T |
I Accumulated depreciation | e i i
| March 31, 2023 37,613.47 2,870.44 | 1,502.05 296360 | 3177 44,981.33 |
\Fortheyear | 344058 |  35037| 17954 53937 2003 | 454789 |
_Adjustments (refer note b below) | 8,591.33 - 0.97 3.42 = 8,595.72
Deduction (469.80) (33.14)1 {0.62) (5.57) - (509.13)
‘March 31,2024 _ 49,175.58 3,196.67 | 1,681.94 3,500.82 60.80 57,615.81 !
]
1
| Net block (I - 11} 1
{March31,2024 " {8247.76 659.47 43743 772.71 549.12 20,666.49
) | Plantand | Furnitureand| LeaseHold |  Office | ]
S |_equipment |  fixtures | Improvement | equipments Vehicles Total |
{1 Gross block _ . : = t
h 31, 2022 47,364.93 | 3,319.00 | 1,633.28 3,636.51 24.64 55,978.36 |
i Sir 015 10.19 - 12.50 - 2284
7.943.06 | 470.83 403.82 | 484.96 168.01 9.470.68 |
(320.02)] = < (11.76) (5.19) (336.97)
54,988.12 3,800.02 | 2,037.10 4,122.21 187.46 65,134.91
2 13521345 2060482 | 134500  2565.71| 2055  41,749.53
| Additions on business combination | _ 0.08 402 - 10.10 2 14.20
Fortheyear el 286125 261.60 157.05 397.26 14.44 3,391.60 |
{ Deduction - (161.31) - - (8.47) {3.22) (174.00)|
| March 31,2023 37,613.47 2,870.44 1,502.08 2,963.60 3177 44,981.33
{ Netblock (I - 1) _ ,
[ March 31,2023 - 17,374.65 929.58 535.05 | 1,158.61 155.69 | 20,153.58
Notes:

a. Refer note 16 and 18 for assets pledged / hypothecated.
b. Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets.

b




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

4 (b). Right of Use Assets ) in ¥ Lakhs |
i |~ Plantand : ~ Office T 1 |
[ Description of Assets equipment Building | equipment Software | Total |
|l GrossBlock ____ . R L _1 |
March 31,2023 | 2380023 1088603  521| 121777  35809.30 |
|Additions . 132.08 1,037.02 | = 4 - . 1789.10 ]
{Adjustments # P S — _(987080)]  (652))  (3.60) (142.02)  (9.821.94)
{Deletions (34.56) {4,403.79) - = (4,438.35),
[March 31, 2024 - 14,226.95 7,513.80 | 161 1,075.75 22818.47
f ) 1
{Il. Accumulated Depreciation === = =il e e s Etmamca mraee
March 31, 2023 1397272 |  6,521.11 4.95 180.70 20,679.48 |
For the year 20z 2,323.18 - | 26231 4,597.21
Adjustments # N ~ (8,591.33) _09n] (342 (142.02) (8,737.74)
[Deletions (16.97) (4,386.38) B - (4,41335)]
\March 31,2024 7,376.14 4,446.94 | 153 300.99 12,125.60
i [ |
‘Net block (1 - If) i e e o e ______j
‘March 31, 2024 6,850.81 3,066.86 0.08 774.76 10,692.51 | |
[ Plant and Office -

. Description of Assets | equipment | Building | equipments Software |  Total ]
I. Gross Block - | N SR — i 1
Mareh 31, 2022 21,57214 |  10,399.56 | 52 142.02 32,118.93 |
Additions 2,655.92 79570 1 - 1,075.75 4,527.37 |
[Deletions I (427.83) (309.17) 5 B - | (737.00)
March 31, 2023 | 23,800.23 10,886.00 | 5.21 1,217.77 35,909.30 | |

1 ] ] |

i Accumulated Depreciation B - J_'__ S R R IR R i
March 31, 2022 T 1416.23 4,540.61 | ~ 495! 13874  16,100.53 |
[For the year o 294587 2,289.67 | - 41.96 | 5277.30 |
tﬁele ions T @esde @odAn. - - (6983 |
[March 31, 2023 13,972.72 6.521.11 | 4.95 180.70 20,679.48 |
[ T |
'Net block {1 - 1) [ e ]
[March 31, 2023 9,827.51 4,364.98 | 0.26 1,087.07 15,229.82 |
# Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assels getting transterred as owned assets
4 (c) Capital work in progress (CWIP) ageing schedule: o - I
| March 31, 2024 I _Amountforaperiedef
i Less than 1 more than 3 |
| | year 1-2year | 2-3year |  years Total |
| Project 2 | 1,938.44 164.48 s =l 230282 ) |
"March 31, 2023 " Amount for a period of e |
| Less than 1 ! | more than 3
b o | year | 1-2year | 2-3year | years
Project 1 - 993| 320 - -]
[ Project 2 6448 - S W
| Total — S S 17’ B A . S S
Note:

There are no capital work in progress where completion is overdue against original planned timelines or where estimated cost exceeded its
original planned cost as on March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

5. Goodwill and other Intangible Assets

S _ in ¥ Lakhs
[ Description of Assets Goodwill ## | Software Total |
I Gm_ss blgeck o — - |
N S ——— — 19,704.14 837.75 _20,541.89 |

- = - 118.34 118.34 |

P — — - 142.02 142.02 |

— & W W = __: j___ == _t_ _ 19,704.14 1,098.11 20,802.25 |

: Il. Accumulated amortisation and impairment - ] o )
N (S 1_§‘490 98 | 725.61 16,216.59

IF I | B7.02 87.02
'Agus_tmﬁtsl_ _____ R o - | 142.02 142.02 |
March 31, 2024 o _; :______ T 15.490.98 | 954.65 16.445.63]
] —
MNethlock -ty ] A i |
March31,2024 4,213.16 | 143.46 4,356.62 |
- T Goodwill ##H# | Software | Total |
| |

N, SR HR ~ 19,704.14 699.03 |  20,403.17 |

- 138.72 138.72

19,704.14 837.75 | 20,541.89

T | ] —

Il m: um ated amorlisation and impairment _ | |

\March 31,2022 | 1549098 66551 | 16,156.49
Fnrthe_year o - - 80.10 | 60.10
\March 31, 2023 _ T - 15,490.98 | 725.61 | 16,216.59_
T — e | SR B i e [
March 31,2023 S e 4,213.16 | T12.14 | 432530 |

Notes:

# Adjustments is on account of completion of lease term and assets getting transferred as owned assets

## On June 30, 2014, the Company (through the amalgamated company namely DNEG Creative Services Limited) acquired the “backend
business’ of providing services of 2D to 3D conversion and visual special effects ("VFX") from Prime Focus Ltd, the ultimate holding company
on a going concern basis by way of slump sale for a total consideration of ¥ 22,970.49 lakhs, On allocation of purchase consideration to the
assets and liabilities taken over, the difference between the purchase consideration and the fair/ book value of net assets acquired aggregating
¥ 19,704.14 lakhs was accounted for as 'Goodwill. The recoverable amount of Goodwill has been determined at the balance sheet date on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Directors and valuation exercise carried
out by an independent valuer. The projections cover a period of five years, which is considered to be the most appropriate timescale over which
to review and consider annual perfarmances before applying a fixed terminal value multiple to the final year ¢ash flows. The growth rates used
to estimate future performance are based on the conservative estimates from past performance. EBITDA margins are based on historical
performance and Company’s strategies.

Weighted Average Cost of Capital % (WACC) = Risk free return + (Market risk premiurn x Beta variant for the Company).

Fofltming key assumptions were considered while performlng Impalrment testlng

S—— - March 31, 2024 |
Long term sustama_glg_ growth rates T 2.000/3

{Weighted Average Gost of Capital % (WACC) after tax_ o o 12.98%,

Based on the above, the Company has concluded that the goodwill amount is fully recoverable as on March 31, 2024.




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

6. Loans (Non-current) (Unsecured, considered good) ~ in % Lakhs

T March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

Loans to related parties = - e ] 8.81 =
‘"Loans to employees =i 447925 79.16
- 1,188.06 79.16

Companies Act 2013.

6.2 The Company has not granted any loans and advances which are either repayable on demand or are without specifying any terms or
period of repayment.

7. Other non-current financial assets (Unsecured, considered good) in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
Deposits (o related paries ] i 386.89 345.05 |
Deposits to others - A | - 41711 585.84 |
Others * - ] B i
Considered good B ) 1 oo |
. __Doubtful - T I T T 46000 )
Total B - 800.00 |
Less: Aliowances - R ___'-__:['“_ ~ (400.00)!
Total Others * (Net) - | 400.00 |
= == 804.00 | 1,330.89 |
* Others include participation rights in box office coflection for feature films T
8. Other non-current ts (Unsecured, considered good) B in¥ Lakhs
| March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 |
| Capital advances 1,549.19 B874.78 |
Prepaid expenses 6552 98.02 |
; — T 1,614.71 §72.80 |
9. Trade receivable (Unsecured) - e i LakhS
[ | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
| Considered good ~ - 2547717 16,915.68
_Credil Impaired e i 1809081] 180891
| Less: allowances for credit losses T (3,151.69) " (3,436.19);
[ - 24,135.39 | 15,289.40 |
“The movement in allowance for bad and doubtful debts is as follows: e SRS,
Balance as at the beginning of the year = e | 343819| = 243696
l?ﬂomncesmadef(mﬁ‘é‘réﬁ) during the year - R I - 10 | . §99.23
[Balance asattheendof theyear  — — | 315169 34389

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking information. The expected
credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivable are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix.

Trade receivables - ageing and other details "~ Undispufed trade receivables |

i Considered | Which have | [ i

|March 31, 2024 - good  significant risk | Creditimpaired |

|Cess than 6 months U/ —esgseval - e .

{Bmonths-Tyear 1 l

1-2year . =

2- 3 year R -

More than 3 years o . ) I

Total 25,477.17 | = 1

Less: allowances for credit losses - T T T B As1ee)]

Net Trade Receivables L 24,135.38
[ Undisputed trade receivables |

T 7 7 Considered | Which have

March 31, 2023 - good significant risk | Credit impaired | ~ Total |

Less than 6 monihs 13,107.91 — ——. _13,107.91

Gmonths-1year | 2475880 - | - | 27880,

1-2 year B 507.21 | 1 i (— 1

2- 3 year I 248.96 | = - 24886

More than 3 years - - —er270| - | 1,809.91 | 268261 | |

Total I 16,915.68 . T 1p09ot|  18,725.59

Less: allowances for credit losses - o (3,436.19),

\Net Trade Receivables ~ 15,289.40 |

b




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

in 2 Lakhs
Ir_ - March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

| Ceshonhand - R - X 1 1.44
| Bank balances R — |
| InCurrent Accounts - e 2,207.96 | 2,077.95 |
I . - 2,211.34 | 2,079.39
| b. Bank balances other than (a) above - - — ] p—
In deposits * 11.97 11.34 |
— - 11,97 1134

* pertains to annually renewable fixed deposits provided as securily lowards bank guarantees issued.

11. Loans (Current) (Unsecured, considered good) S in ¥ Lakhs
[ e March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 |
{Loansiorelatedparties = 5.61 =
rLuans to employees 744.07 25.00 |
== 749.68 25.00

11 1 Loans given to employees as per the Company's policy are not considered for the purpose of disclosure under seclion 186 (4) of the

Companies Act 2013.

11.2 The Company has not granted any loans and advances which are either repayable on demand or are without specifying any terms or

period of repayment.

12. Other current financial assets (Unsecured, considered goad)

in  Lakhs

o B _ | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
| Unbilled revenue - I e B R e — |
Considered Good - 2,305.14 1.430.74
| Doubtful = - 67.09 195.59
| Total == . o ~ 237223 1,626.33 |
Less: Allowances (67.09) {195.58)
Total Unbilled revenue (net) . 2,305.14 1,430.74
Export incentives receivable e 47500 | 79933 |
Imarastmmonbankdeposﬂs o o 0.11 0.11
| Advances to related parties o - R ) |
| Considered Good _ - - - - —331.78 |
Doubtful _ e 311.46 -
| Total . o 311.46 331.78 |
| Less: Allowances o o (311.46)|_ -
| Total Advances to related parties (nef) - 331.78 |
Deposits to related parties e —— — 786.56 786.56 |
,Seeup_w_deposns toothers = = S o
Caonsidered good 5,902.64 882.82
o 97.60 T e760
— 6,000.24 980.42
- 97.60) {97.60)
5,802.64 | 882.82
T ~ 6,760.30 1,331.72
o S 16,236.75 5,663.06 |
* Others include participation rights in box office collection for feature films and expenses recoverable from third party.
13. Other ts (Current) . o in ¥ Lakhs
- March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
1 Prepaidexpenses - 266.40 174.85
| Advances to supgj@_m
[__Cansderﬁdgood JE— == 1,150.55 57.07
| Doubtiul - B 50.47 50.47 |
| To 1,201.02 107.54 |
_Less: Provision for doubtful advances e (50.47) (50.47)
i ~Total advances to suppliers (net) 1,150.55 57.07
| Others# - T 4,360.54 4,979.27
i._ S - - 5,777.49 5,211.14
# Others include Goods and Services Tayx input credit.

o




ol March3 2024
I }_ No of shares ; % of total
ter name - shares __ |
DNEG SARL (Erstwhile Prime Focus World N.V.) 98,079,600 | | 100%
(including shares held by its nominees) | | o
Total o | 98079600, 100%

DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

14. Equity share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

‘Authorised (post amalgamation):

| March 31,2024 _

in % Lakhs

March 31, 2023

98,250,000 Shares of % 10/~each - 7982500  9,825.00

1,200,000 10% Redeemable Nor-Convertible Preference shares of Re. 1each 12007 2.00 |
I - 9,837.00 | 9,837.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-Up: - S T

98,079,600 (Previous year 98,079,600 Shares)_c}f%lb/- each T 98079 5807986

M e e e e N S 880785
] i) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstandingat S EANE EE.A S oS
March 31, 2024 1 T March 31,2023

I ) “NoofShares | in¥Lakhs | No of Shares '_ _inTlakhs
|Atthe beginning of theyear 98,079,600 | 9,807.96 | 98,079,600
l:‘ the end of the year _ = e 98,079,600 |, 980796 | 98,079,600

ote:

98,079,600 Shares of ¥ 10/- each were allotted to DNEG SARL (Erstwhile Prime Focus World N.V.) as part of scheme of amalgamation.

Scheme of Amalgamation:

The scheme of amalgamation of DNEG Creative Services Limited (DCSL), erstwhile Holding Company of the Company and Double Negative
India Private Limited (DNIPL), fellow subsidiary of the Company (together referred to as "the amalgamating companies") with the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on June 17,2019 with an appointed date of April 01, 2019. All the three entities are in
the business of providing post-production services to Prime Focus World NV, the intermediate holding company. The said scheme had been
approved by National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT") on March 12, 2020. This common cantrol business combination had been accounted as

per the scheme and in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 "Business Combinations".
(iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 10 each. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all liabilities, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters:

_15. Otherequity

“Securities premium

A3 pe ieal baisnce sheet

Capital reserve
As per last balance sheet

Retained earnings *

| As per last balance sheet
" Business combination under common centrol (refer note 38)

Add Tola! al comprehensive income far ﬂ'le vea:

March 31

98,078,600 |

__March 31,2024 |

T eso7es00,

, 2023

" Noofshares | % of total shares .

100%|
___100%

in  Lakhs
March 31, 23

| P —— - — e —————————

3684462 3684482
36844062 3684462
. _'! " (62,296.86),
— - _ (62,296.86)
i = —

1 —(

[ - (389.32)
I 513.70 | ___7.819.84 "
1 (18.28)] (53198
] (25,370.52)! (25,964.22)

* Includes Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of la;}. §ain“}' ffﬁsé) of '?_(St;dﬁf’];lék'hs (Previous year Z (550.88) Lakhs).

k




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

16. Non Current Borrowings _  m . in ¥ Lakhs
T S ____ March 31, 2024 | March 31,&)2@_J
“Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (refernote (@) I | .= 214910 |
[Loans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refer note (b)) e 47,175.10 28,221.49 |
Loa_r) from others {Secured) (refer note (¢)) T 240.29 =]
‘Vehicle Loan from Bank (Secured) (refer note (d]} o | 625.80 | 118.81 |
Vehicle Loan from Others (Secured) (refer note (g)) 140.36 | l

: bl il b MR B A ) [ =1 TR | 30,488.40 |
Notes: =

(a) Working Capital Term Loan facility obtained in India was 100% Credit Guaranteed by National Credit Guarantee Trust Company Limited
under Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme. It carried second charge over present and future current assets, movable fixed assets and
properties of Parent's India business (excluding specific assets charged against finance lease), second charge by way of pledge aver 30%
shares of Prime Focus Technologies and pledge of shares of the Parent held by Parent's promoters. Tenor of the loan was 6 years from
September 2021, repayable in 48 equal instalments after moratorium of 2 years. Interest rate applicable was 1% over 1 year MCLR subject to
cap of 9.25% p.a.. This has been repaid during the year.

(b} Foreign currency loans from related parties are long term unsecured loans availed from its fellow subsidiary company at an interest rate of
Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) + 375 bps at the time of drawdown of loan. The repayment starts from the FY 2029-30 to FY 2033-
34 as per the agreed schedule. Interest is payable annually in arrears.

(c) Loan from others are secured against the underlying asset, carries interest rate of 9.6% p.a. and is repayable in equal quarterly instalments
over the period of 3 years.

(d) Vehicle loan from banks are secured by hypothecation of the vehicle, repayable in equal monthly instalments over the period of 5 years.
Interest rate is in range of 7.9% to 9.00% p.a..

(e) Vehicle loan from others are secured by hypothecation of the vehicle, repayable in equal monthly instalments over the period of 5 years.
Interest rate is in range of 9.75% to 10.25% p.a..

_17. Provisions (Non Current) . in ¥ Lakhs
March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 |

[Provision for employee benefits

Provision for gratuly (refernote 30y 423037 | 3473586 |
Others T ]
[Provision for assef reirement o obligaion = T 308.837 0 20224
e e '_ ) L 4530.36 3,706.10 |
o . e ———

17.1 The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for which any provision was required for foreseeable
losses and not provided for.

17.2 Provision for asset retirement obligation is recognised in respect of leases based on the expectations of usage of the properties, cost of
removal, restoration cots, inflation and applicable discount rate. The usage of properties is generally expected for a period of 10 years.

S S S S in ¥ Lakhs

Movementin other provisions | March 31,2024 [ March 31, 2023

| Opening Balance 5 202.24 | =]
: Provision created / (Written back) during the year _(15.44) _...282.10

 Add: Unwinding of discount A NS ', - e (8

ClosingBalance ~ ~ 300.93 | 292.24

_18. Borrowings (Current) in ¥ Lakhs

= i March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 |
: Short term demand loan | [Secured) = |

:nvcme discounting facility (refer note (a)) e s U e 0,368.64 | 595035 |
rCurrarlt maturities of long term borrowings _ [

[Term Loan from Banks (Secured) (refer note 16(a)) - | - 26874 |
{Loans from related parties in foreign currency (Unsecured) (refer note 16(!_:)] e | 4,281.52 2,264.92 |
LTerm Losn_ rom _oihers (Secured) (refer note (b) ) and 1 16§c}1 B - B | 4,963.63 o |
Vehicle Loan from Bank (Secured) (refer note 16(d)) — 133_{2’ [ _2_9,_2_2_!
{Vehicle Loan from Others (Secured) (refer note 16{9)) e | 13.17 | =
| DR R RN - _11}_.}'61.43. 8,513.23 |

Notes:
(a) During the year the Company has availed credit facility of ¥ 9,500 Lakhs against (i) first pari passu charge on current assets of the
Company and (ii} Corporate guarantee of DNEG SARL (erstwhile Prime Focus World NV). At the year end March 31, 2024 the outstanding
amount of preshipment finance is ¥ 9,368.64 Lakhs carrying interest in range of 9.2% to 9.3% p.a.. (Pravious year: The Company had availed
post shipment credit in foreign currency against the sanctioned limit of ¥ 60 crores at a rate of interest ranging from 4.3% to 9.3% p.a. and for a
tenor up to 6 months from Yes Bank Ltd. The above facility was secured against; (i) First pari passu charge on current assets and movable
fixed assets of the Company; (i} Pledge of shares of the ultimate holding company held by promoters; (iii) Corporate guarantee of DNEG SARL
(erstwhile Prime Focus World NV); (iv) Corporate guarantee of the ultimate holding company; (v) Personal guarantee of the promoters of
ultimate holding company; (vi) Pledge of 30% shares of subsidiaries and group companies viz; the Company, Prime Focus Technologies
Limited, PF World Limited, Mauritius, Prime Focus Luxembourg SARL., Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief U.A., Prime Focus Technologies Inc.
(USA). DAX PFT LLC (USA), Prime Focus Technologies UK Limited, Prime Post (Europs) Limited and Dneg Indla Media Services Limited held
by the ultimate holding company directly or indirectly. At the year end March 31, 2023, the outstanding was ¥ 5,950.35 lakhs.)

(b) Loan from others are secured against the underlying asset, carries interest rate of 8.1% p.a. and is repayable in six equal mstatrnenyéﬂ‘

\VL 4‘5} b\Sc/?
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

19. Trade payables S o ) in ¥ Lakhs
| _ o o e o I March 31, 2024_4 _March 31, 2023 |
| Trade payables to other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises | 2 908 2,575, 96 ]
Due to group companies - | | 1, 703, 12 1,189.94 |

B air | 4,011.89 | 3.735.90

Mote:
According to the records available with the Company, there were no transactions and dues payable to entities that are classified as Micro and
Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for all the above pefiods.

in ¥ Lakhs
Trade Payables - ageing and otherdetails | March31,2024 | March 31, 2023 |
Disputed Eo ) ] = =
Undisputed | ] ]
focusle . T igeie| 133748
Not due DS I ) ) T s0r 4| 20007
Less than 6 months | 103148 91269 |
.6 months - 1 year I | 7746 9681
_1-2Years o o _ - [ 59.10 100.45 |
2-3 Years | 462 957.68 |
More than 3 years I 1,145.00 121.72 |
Total T B ) S - 4,011.89 3,735.90 |
20. Other current financial Liabilities = _— o — = _ _in ¥ Lakhs
L I R~y X s 3 March 3, 2024 | _@g@h_@1 2023
Accrued salaries and benefits : 93 33342 | 8.007.94
Interest accrued i 4583 156.42
Capital Creditors S " 506.24 ~ 661.84
i §,985.49 | 8,626.20 |
‘Note: R

There are no amounts due for payment to the Investor Education and Protection Fund under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 as at
March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil),

_21. Other current liabilities o o ) o in % Lakhs
- |_March 31, 2023 |
[Deferred revenue e o 13!;_?_._1_5_0_|
\Deposits from customers. . . AT3A3
{Statutory dues_ N R 1,017.06 |
‘Others 31.35 |
| B e 70,894.04 | :
_22. Current provisions ] _in ¥ Lakhs

" March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

aPro\rlsmn sion for employee benefits
'Provision for gratuity (refer nate 30)

Note:
The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, for which any provision was required for foreseeable losses
and not provided for.

\
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_23. Revenue from operations . in ¥ Lakhs_
| - I o o March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
| Sale of services 102,191.57 95,434.15
| Other operating income - |
| Management Fees Income 1,116.12 1,555.67
| Export incentives (inciuding gain on sale of licenses) 60.04 896.13 |
= 103,367.73 101,865.95 |
24, Other income in ¥ Lakhs
e = March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
| Interest income from financial assets held at amortised cost:
| _Interest income on bank deposit R 5.86 9.32
| interest Income - On income Tax Refunds - gy - 9.07 |
interest income - Others 163.71 134.68
Provision for doubtful debts written back o o 413.00 |
Gain on modification of lease _ _ __ 618.58 ] . 9._8_4 1
Miscellaneous income T 8711 59.93 |
1,278.26 i
25. Employee benefits expense - in T Lakhs
' [ . R ‘March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 |
| Selaries and wages T _ 62,597.39 60,855.80 |
| Grstu|ty (Refer note 30) - . 1,087.42 83534 |
| Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer nate 30) 43322 1,198.52 |
f welfare expenses 75675 | 692,06 |
f 65,873.78 63,570.72
_26. Finance costs - in ¥ Lakhs
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
Interest on term loan o 264.52 22191
Interest on lease liabilities . 1,673.63 1,623.57 |
Interest on working capital finance _ _ 509.75 356 19 |
Interest on vehicle loan o B 15.20 8.39 |
| Interest on related party loans e 3,528.73 1.070.14
Interest on others 44.39 3941
‘__‘?ﬂ‘k charges 4.58 7.60 |
e _ - 6,040.80 3327.21
27. Other expenses o in¥ Lakhs
... | MNarch31,2024 | March 31,2023 |
|Rent o . 2,931.24 21&0 78
| Eleclricitycharges 2,044.52 2,161.41 |
Technicalservicecost S ; et EBRSRE 19101
Legal and professional fees o i 14,39 |
| House-keeping charges i 145.86
unication charges _ e e B e 11.58
velling ar and d car __,____-expense 71.15
| Management Fees expense — o 754.16
| Commission & Brokerage o == -
Security charges 36165
| Technician fees 3,186.30
| Insurance cost e 190.80
Rates and taxes o 230.51
| Repairs & Maintenance - Equipments 722.41
| Repairs & Maintenance - Building - - 44036
| Repalrs & Maintenance - Vehicles ~ — 3331 |
Advertising and promotions o 243.64
Provision for doubtfuil assets ) I _ 31148
Provision for doubtful debts - - - -
Exchange gain (net) 1,481.08
| Bad debls written cff . e 87.47
J 6,404.57
= 108.00
Loss on sag of Egogergy,_plant and equipments o = 33.41
["Payments to auditor (Excluding GST)*:
_Audit fees _ 25.00
For other services {certification) o S A
Far out of pocket expenses AN = . 0.96 3
Miscelianecus expenses ________ 310.76 405.30
'23,974,64 17,212.28

* Includes audit fees of subsidiary auditor on account of amalgamation.

s
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28. Tax expense

a ax expense / (credit) recagnised in Statement of Profit and Loss PR in ¥ Lakhs |
R T —— March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 ||
‘99_@1@5__,., — e SN Ly 1904
[Current lax in respact of eariier years 3.00
DeferedTax N “l B L. 51
{Total tax expense/ (credit) recognised in statement of profit and loss [ R 1/ 45“5 T aA0821
_b. Income tax expense / (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income in ¥ Lakhs

[ | March31,2024 | March 31,2023
I]Re-rneasurernent of defined benefit obligation 3.63 (78.57)!
{Income fax I{credit) recognised in other comprehensive income __j_ | 3.63 (78.57)
¢. The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows: |
_in T Lakhs
i s T T T Marh1, 2024 | Warch 31,2023
Profitbeforetax_ - {47558)  09.260.58 |
licable Tax rate o - . 28AT%HR,  2547%
Computed tax expense - (119.69) _2,330.70
\Tax Effect oft R | S S AR j
Effect of amortisation of intangible assets under tax laws considered as permanent difference (880.27) (1,196.35)|
|Previously unrecognised deferred tax liability on temporary differences I 8] =
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset on losses {8.25) =
Commeon control business combinations accounted for as per Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Refer note |
38) (6.07) (82.92)!
Impact on account of prior year taxation o e = (300,
Others s - 34,65 59.78 |
"Tax (credit) recognised in statement of profitand Toss (net] e (978.45)) 1,408.21

The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profit under the Income tax

laws.

d. Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
|

in T Lakhs

[ ~ - “March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
|Deferred tax (assets) on temporary differences (3,818.83)
[ (3,818.93) (2,844.11)

"

(2,844.11)|
|
|




DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

I — — ___ _in%lakhs
! S o i ' "_-NTirch_Ii_L-T“_CEér_g_el Charge/ | March 31, Charge/ Charge/ March 31, |
2022 (credit) to | (credit) to 2023 (credit) to | (credit) to 2024
| | Statement ocl Statement ocl
' : of Profit of Profit and
! . and Loss Loss
Deferred tax fiabilty [ | | [ ]
Difference between tax books and written | 501.72 | 521.15 | - 1,022.87 246.84 - 1,269,71
down value of PPE, other intangible assets ! |
and right of use assets i I !
T TTsoA72) 2145 - | 1,022.87 246.84 - [ 128971
\Deferredtaxasset 1 L | | S
Provision for gratuity / bonus/ leave provision : 999.04 | 227.24 78.57 | 1,304.85 188.24 (3,63)! 1,489.46 ]
' b . Ll |
Provision for doublful advances and debls | 650,60 | 401.38 - 1,051.98 (126.22)] - 925.76 |
Lease Deposil Discounting & Equalisation |~ 11556 | (23.49) - 92.07 (36.18) - 5589
Merger re expenses 1275 | (5.70) - 7.05 (6.10} - 0.95 |
leaseliabites | 18690| 144741 - | 30164 _ (890n - | = 21263}
{Unabsorbed depreciation and carried forward | 2,418.58 1 (1,309.19) - 1,109.39 1,294.56 - 2,403.95 I
losses |
I - T a35343 | (565.02) 7857 | 3.866.98 |  1,225.29 (3.63)] _ 5,088.84 |
f .~ {3,851.71)|  1,086.17 {78.57)| (2,844.11)| (978.45) 3.63 (3,818.93)|

Note: The Company is mainly a cost plus entity rendering services to its immediate holding company and other fellow subsidiaries, has been
profitable over the years and the revenue from operations have continued to grow in recent years. Hence, there is reasonable certainty on
utilisation of unabsorbed depreciation, thereby deferred tax asset is recognised.

29, Earnings pershare = in ¥ Lakhs
| Particulars ! March 31, | March 31, -1'
I b w024 | 2023 |

| Net pofit as per Siatement of Proft and Loss afirbutable o Equly Sharshoiders N9 Bls2aT)
T Number | Number ]
96,079,600 | 98,079,600 |

(BasicEPS(@® G| 84|
Diluted EPS (%) o 051 | 8.31 |
{ Face valuepershare . _ 10,00 | 10.00

30. Employee benefits

aDefined contribution plans

The Company's defined contribution plans are provident fund, Employee State Insurance and employees' pension scheme (under the
provisions of the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952).

_Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as expense for the year is as under: in¥ Lakhs
March 31, March 31,
| 2024 | 2023 _
FEIDPEYEL'_S contribution to provident fund - —_— - 1,392.04 1,153.98 |
Employer's contributiontoother funds 41.18 4254 |

b. Defined benefit plans
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded) for qualifying employees of its operations in India. The defined benefit plan is
administered by the Company. Under this plan, the employee is entitied to a lump-sum payment upon retirement from the services of the

Company. An employee becomes eligible to receive payment upon completion of 5 years of service at the rate of 15 days of service for each
completed year of service,

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as; interest rat_e r_isk, longevity risk and salary risk.

[nterest risk |A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. . |
' Longevity risk 'The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best

‘eslimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment. An’
, lincrease in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability

! . =i - S |
| Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future

salaries of plan participants. As such an increase in the salary of the plan participants will|
| increase the plan's liability. |

No other post-retirement benefits are provided to the employees.

In respect of the said plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the defined benefit obligation were camied out by an external expert, who is a
duly registered actuary, The present value of the defined benefit obfigation and the related curent service cost and past service cost, were
measured using the projected unit credit method.
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation: in ¥ Lakhs
e [ March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 |

_ 3,488.00 2,80267

o R 11.78

i - 262.30 20405

Current service cost 825.12 63129
Benefits paid (260.02) (473.19)
| Actuarial Iosses on obllgat[ons - due to change in financial assumptions 179.61 (139.56)

; g (194.04) 450.96

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year ) 430087 3,488.00
if) Expense recognized in Statement of ProfitandLoss: in T Lakhs

l ~March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

| Gurrent service cost TR B 825,12 | T 631.29

[ Netinterest cost e | 26230 ~ 204.05
[ Exp recognized B - il 1,087.42 | §35.34 |
iif) Expenses recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) . in ¥ Lakhs

| . March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

| Actuarial (gain) / loss R = (14.43) 31140
[ Net {gain) / loss recognized in OCI T e e (14.43) 311407

iv) Actuarial assumptions:
f

I"Rate of discounting (p.a)

7.22%

Rate of salary increase (p.a.)
A:lrllton rale (p.a.)

| Mortality table

7.00% _

For service 2 years For service 2 years|

and below 20.00% | and below 20.00% |
p.a. p.a. I

|For service 3 years| | For service 3 years

| to 4 years 10.00% | to 4 years 10.00%

| p.a. p.a.

For service 5 years| Far service 5 yearsl

and above 2.00% ! and above 2.00%
p.a. p.a. |
“Indian Assured | Indian Assured |
Lives i Lives |
Mortality 2012-14 | Mortality 2012-14 |
(urban) | {Urben)

The discount rates reflect the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated

term of the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account,
relevant factors, such as demand and supply in the employment market

v) Sensitivity analysis of the defined benefit obligations:

inflation, seniority, promotions and other

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,

would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

e e - in ¥ Lakhs
- - Eg-:ch 31, 2024 | ~March 31, 2023 ] f
[ T ‘( " Tncrease in “Decreasein | Increasein " Decrease in
i |- mption _assumption | assumption | assumption
'Discount rate (1% movement) | (561 67926 |  (457.58)
[Future salary appreciation (1% movement) | 67386 (567, 07) 55201 |
Attrition rate {1% movement) E_ {1403 1256 | 4861

The above information is as per the report of the actuary.
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31. Financial instruments

a. Capital Risk Management

The objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the ability to continue as a going concem to provide retums for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The management sets the amounts of capital required in proportion to risk. The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it in light of
changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The capital structure consists of borrowings (as detailed in note 16 and 18), and equity (comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
eamings as detailed in statement of changes in shareholders’ equity). The debt equity ratio for current year is 1.44 (March 31, 2023; 0.85).

Consequent to the common control business combination given effect to in the previous year, which resulted in creation of debit balance in
capital reserve, the Company has a negative net worth as at March 31, 2024, The consideration payable to the shareholders of the combining
entities, primarily resulted in a negative net working capital. The Company is mainly a cost plus entity rendering services to its immediate
holding company and other fellow subsidiaries, has been profitable over the years and the revenue from operations have continued to grow in
recent years.

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements,

b. Financial risk management objectives
A wide range of risks may affect the Company’s business and ﬁnanCIaI results. Amongst other risks that could have significant influence on the
Company are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
The Board of Directors of the Company manage and review the affairs of the Company by setting up short term and long-term budgets by
monitoring the same and taking suitable actions to minimise potential adverse effects on its operational and financial performance.

c. Market risk
The Company is primarily exposed to the following market risks.
i. Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when
revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company's foreign currency exposure as at year end is - as follows:

Foreign ~ March 31, 2024 ~ March3f, 2023 |
currency Foreign | in¥ Lakhs Foreign in € Lakhs |
denomination currency | currency
IN—— A {in Lakh) | (in Lakh)
Financial Assets - Uso | 22723  18938.71]  104.96]  8,616.68
— - _EUR 0.29 e B
- - - __GBP 1,619.82 8614 367051
- T T mED T 0.35 0.01

Total I — 2045947 0 | 5
Flnanda! Liabilities - uso | 16.77] _ 1,396.07 51.76 4,249.08)
N S CAD 085 3973 065 3919
e e e GRE 489-041 _51460.44] 331.06] 3382218
—  —  —— == sl | SGD - 028~ 17.07|
,_ e e e EUR B ____009 7.85 2.84] 253.24)
e e P e T AED R OOQJF .. os38 00 - ]
== il NPR 0500 0.31] 6.12 3.82)
_.Total e ey ___‘__J  52,904.76| 38,184.58|
NetExposwre  ~ T T T (32,448.89)) | (25,896.07)

The Company's sensitivity to a 5% appreciation/depreciation of above mentioned foreign currencies with respect to Rupee would result in
decrease/ increase in the Company's net (loss) / profit before tax by approximately ¥ 1,622.28 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2024 (March
31, 2023: increase / decrease by ¥ 1,294.75 Lakhs respectively). This sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denommated monetary items.
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DNEG INDIA MEDIA SERVICES LIMITED

ii. Interest rate risk management

The Company is not exposed significantly to interest rate risk because it borrows funds in the form of invoice discounting facility at fioating
interest rates determined on the date of disbursement, funds from related parties at floating rates and term loans with capping on interest
rates.

iii. Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a client or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to credit risk is manitored on an on-going basis,

The Company has a low credit risk in respect of its trade receivables, as its principal customers are group companies.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk was ¥ 45,339.19
Lakhs and ¥ 24,378.24 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively, being the total of the carrying amount of the balances
with banks, bank deposits, investments excluding equity investments, trade receivables, unbilled revenue and other financial assets. |

d. Liquidity risk management |

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligations timely.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position (comprising of undrawn bank facilities and cash and cash
equivalents) on the basis of expected cash flows. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into account the accessibility of cash
and cash equivalents. |
The table below analyses the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities. The following break up is based on the remaining period at |
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual discounted cash flows

R e . InTlakhs
| March 31, 2024 Lessthan | Between | Morethan5 i Total
e e e _Ayear | 1toSyears | years | =~ |
| Barrowings == 4o B761431 100645 4717510  66,942.98 |
| Lease liabilities 3,998.62 | 5,058.75 | - | 9857.37 :
| Trade payable: 4,011.89 | - | - | 401189
| lradepayables : ———seEE : _!__ — 558540 |
| 3675743 | 6,965.20 | 47,175.10 | 90,897.13 | |
. _______inZlakhs
- T 7] Lessthan | Betwsen | Morethan5
A | tyear | 1tosyears | years _ '
_Barrowings ...+ B851323| 2267381| 2822149 3000263 |
| Lease liabilities oL 1 563108' _ - 1445555 1
Trade payables e e 373590 |
| Other financial liabilities R i R . 2L = 8,826.20 |
i [ 26,706.41 | 11.092.38 28,221.49 66,020.28 |

\
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e. Fair value measurements in ¥ Lakhs
__Carrying value | Fair value
' March 31, | March31, | March 31, | March 31, Fair value
_____ o 2024 2023 | 2024 2023 hiifﬂﬁhy__|
! Flnancial Assets i o —o=ems,
| Fin: ssels m uredaifarvslue ~ | [ Bl e !
Il Other financial assets 2,175.00 400,00 | 2,175.00 400.00 Level 3 ’]
Einancial assets measured af amortised Cost_ |- 1
| Trade receivables o 12413539 | 1528940 | - = | .
["Cash and cash equivalents | 221134 2079391 - - 1 ~
| Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 11.871 1134 | - - BN
{Loans - = [ 1,188.06 79.16 | | - ]
romar financial assets | 14,867.75 | _ 6,493.95 | = - A
[Total financial assets | 44589.51 | 24,353.24 |  2,175.00 400.00
LI — i e —
| Financial liabilities measured at amortised cosf ] . L
Borrowings . . - | 6694298 | 3800263 | -
Lease liabilities Ll o | 9.957.37| 14,455.55 - -
Trade payables | 4,011.89 3,735.90 - -
Other financial liabilities — 9,985.49 882620 | -
Total financial liabilities | 90,897.73 | 66,020.28 - -

Consequent to the common control business combination given effect to in the previous year, which resulted in creation of debit balance in
capital reserve, the Company has a negative net worth as at March 31, 2024. The consideration payable to the shareholders of the
combining entities, has primarily resulted in a negative net working capital as on the balance sheet date. The Company is mainly a cost plus
entity rendering services to its immediate holding company and other fellow subsidiaries, has been profitable over the years and the revenue

from operations have continued to grow in recent years.

Basis of valuation technique for level 3 financial Instruments in ¥ Lakhs
e Fair value e S
] [ Valuation | Relationship of |
!Financial NSsats March 31, | March 3t, | Fair value | techniques l unobservable H
} 1 2024 2023 hierarchy and key inputs to fair
S [ | inputs | vale
| Undiscounte |Higher the
[ d cash flowjestimated I
based an|theatrical box
Revenue participation in movies 2,175.00 400.00 ILevel 3 estimated office
theatrical box| performance the
| | office |h|gher is the fair
N ———— performance |value
Movemsnl in lml 3 Instn.lmenls  during the year in i Lakhs|
Maru"l 31,2022 I i _800.00_
Less. Allowances . T ano.oo)
{March 31, 2023 400.00 |
.Mdmon dunngh'che year 8,175.00
Less Writtenoff | (6,400.00)
{March 31, 2024 2.175.00
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32. Related party disclosures -

a. List of related parties where control exlsts, Irrespective of fransactions
Ultima Iding Compan

Prime Focus Limited

Intermediate holding companies
PF World Limitad

Iimmediate Holding company
DNEG SARL®

List of related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Fellow subsidiaries

Prime Focus International Services UK Limited

Prime Focus Technologies Limited

Double Negative Limited

Double Negative Canada Productions Limited

Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited

DNEG North America Inc

DNEG Australia PTY Limited

Jam8 Prime Facus LLP

Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc (up to April 12, 2024)

Enterprises owned or significantly influen Management Person i atives and whe! ny had tran

during the reporting period
Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited

Key Management Personnel
Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity)

Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala (w.e.f. June 1, 2022)

* During the year, immediate parent of Prime Focus World NV ("PFW") viz, Prime Focus 3D Cooperatief was liquidated. Effective from April 01,
2023, the operations of the PFW, got merged with its immediate parent DNEG SARL (Formerly known as Prime Focus Luxembourg SARL).

o
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b. List of transactions with related parties during the year - in # Lakhs
' T I March 31, 2024[March 31, 2023
Borrowmgs Js taken o o R
[Double Negative Limited _ 17,541.11 9,915.00 |
[
|Borrowings repaid
|%§g Negative Limited . R 1,384.62 =l
lRentexMe o - q_: :_ _______ |
{Prime Focus Limited _ o o 2,018.71 9_51_;_22;_
'Bloomlng Buds Coaching Private Limited T 452.17 427.16
— R .
Recovery of rentexpense R — o S
'Jam8 Prime Focus LLP R 88.00 <
\Financecosts - |
|Prime Focus Linited - 11215 |
{Double Negative Limited 3,528.73 957.99
— -
|Reimbursement of expenses incurred by — == |
\Prime Focus Limited o= 326.42 12142
{Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited e == ———— - 218
'DNEG NofivAmeficatne_———— . = - - ———— - 6.18"
F_R_ei_mhumement of expenses incurred for eSS ]
= B S
Double Negative Canada Productions Limited === - 336
| Technician Fees __‘
Merzin Tavania (W/s Luminosity) 67.50 7800
Management Fees income =
|Double Negative Limited e e 1,116.12 1,555.67
Revenue S == ]
Prime Focus Limited e ——— == —c=_=ac B =1 156,3_]
\Prime Focus  Technologies Limited 5.00 = i
Prime Focus International Services UK Limited - 169.17
‘Double Negative Li Negative Limited 61,799.99 54,705.62
| Double Negative Canada Productions Limited 4,673.58 6,328.26
{Double Negative Monireal Productions Limited 21,138.23 23,014.48
’Tﬂc.'.!ll'E!!_“_L‘fL@_‘E@?l =S —a —
;Pﬂme Focus Technolegies Limited - 0.50
Jama  Prime Focus LLP s 14.26 6.50
T e — e —————— j
lﬂmﬂwﬂ Negative Montreal Productions Limited -
{Double Negative Canada Productions Limited N - 6,00
'DNEG Australia PTY Limited - - 445
Double Negative Limited o 17.59 188.01
[Purchase of assets _ - i
ane Focus International Services UK Limited - - 245.06
N = |
'Management Fees Expense o o
Prime Focus Limited o o _ 754.16 EQQ_QSJ
|
Provision for doubtful receivable o B B
Lowry Digital Imaging Services Inc 311.46 -
|
'Remuneration (refer note ¢ below) !
Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala - - 99.58 117.83
Loans Given - - J!
Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala 14.42 = ]

\
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¢. Balance outstanding at the year end in X Lakhs
| March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

Loans received {including Interest)

| Double Negative Limited S | 5145662 |  30,486.41 |
|Security deposits receivable — o
|Prime Focus Limited S S -1 786.56
{Blooming Buds Coaching Private Limited - ' 1 530.00 | 530.00
|
[Trade payables and other current liabilittes 4~ T
|Prime Focus Limited 31.82 118.51
|Prime Focus Technologies Limited S _ _ 053} 0.50
|Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited I 3683 36.33 |
|_Daubla Negative Canada Productions Limited 290" 2.86
|DNEG North America Inc . 09 D48
DNEG SARL Rl s o | 981.63 | 967.10
Prime Focus Intermational Services UK Limited N | 35.05 | 513.45
Merzin Tavaria (M/s Luminosity) e — | 540 7.02
Jamg Prime Focus LLP B O VS (R T* = =
|
‘Advances to related parties . oo T )
[Lowry Digital jmaging Servieefne — I -l 30685
|Double Negative Limited = 24,93
| Trade receivables and Other receivables N s &
|Prime Focus Limited o T . 9651
\Double Negalive Limited 1007 ~_10,528.18
[Double Negative Canada Productions Limited _ 4. TBAS | 130471
' Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited e 9,309.98 | -
|Prime Focus Technologies Limited - . R 1284 ~ 6.96
‘Jam8 Prime Focus LLP ? ol Ao3sal =
' N E— L.__n_ -

'Unbilied revenue/ (Deferred ue) |

| Double Negative Montreal Productions Limited R T (8,710.7 791 ~(10,880.91),
'Double Negalive Limited (2,847.24) (7,590. __)
|DNEG North Americalne = T TR (3349 49)
\Prime Focus International Services UK Limited = (85.48)! (85. 46)|
'Double Negative Canada Productions Limited (1,803.94)f_’ (294, 65)

‘Loans Receivable

‘Ms. Delna Dhamodiwala =

Corporate guarantees given by and outstanding at the yearend — i -

Prime Focus Limﬂed - | " 76,000.00 |
'DNEG SARL ==yl pes i 9580.00 1,800.00 |
Notes:

a. The promoters has given personal guarantee and has pledged part of their shareholdings of PFL for borrowings taken by the Company
(Refer note 16).

b. All contracts/ arrangement with the related parties are at arms length

c. As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on the basis of report of actuary for the Company as a whole, the amounts
pertaining to Key Management Personnel are not included.
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33. Capital commilments ) i o o in ¥ Lakhs
A T i March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
[Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capital account (net of advances) and 4,630.40 | 60.60

'not provided for: |

|Estimated amount of commitments towards revenue participation agreements (net of advances}; ~3s0000] - |
34. Contingent liabilities B ) - in T Lakhs

[ _March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |

ilncome Tax Matters und'e;:_di_égu;
Relates to demands raised by the income tax authorities for AY 2017-18 under Transfer pﬂclng 1,818.19 1,818.19

‘provisions Margin Adjustments on transfer pricing transaction. The matter is pending before Income\
|tax appellate tribunal H

'Goods and Services Tax
iRelates to order issued by the Goods and Services Tax authorities for FY 17-18 to FY 20-21 relaling 266.78 . =

to reversal and claim of input tax credit. The Company has filled an appeal before the oommlsswner
against the said order.

‘Note:
In respect of above matters, the Company is hopeful of succeeding in appeals and as such does not expect any significant liability to
materialize. Future cash flows in respect of above are determinable only on receipt of judgements/ decisions pending with the authority,

35. Leases
Maturity profile of lease liabilities R in ¥ Lakhs
o Mareh 31 2024 ) ] __March 31, 2023
Carrylng Amount Undvscounted Garnrmg Amount Undiscounted
Cash flow |
: within one year 3,9_98.92 o 4474, 56 |
 later than gne year and not later than five years ... 595875 j 370. gz_, o

Iatgrth/anjv_e,yea_rs_ R TS S —— rsadd =T
.8.957.37 . 1184478 .1&‘155:5,5,(-. _17,775.85

36. Segment reporting

The segment information has been prepared in line with the review of operating results by chief operating decision maker (CODM). The
Company is presently operating as integrated post-production services to DNEG SARL, the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries and is considered as representing a single operating segment,

The Company operates in four principal geographical areas — India (Country of Domicile), United Kingdom and Canada. The Company's
revenue from continuing operations from customers by location of customers and information about its non-current assets by location of
assets are detailed below:

I N = I .. in % Lakhs
| [ Revenue from operations Segment Non-current t |
:___-_‘__ o e | Marc 024 | Marc 023 March 31, 2024 March 3772023'7
[India 1463960 Tiia7a| 4126429 42,084.81 |
| United Kingdom o o | 8291610/ 5643048 - -
|Camada T 9581181 | 2934275 B
| i N - B o i 103,367.73 | 101,885.95 41,264,29 | 1

Two customers contributed 10% or more of the Company's total revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 (refer note

‘The total cfp;euioi:é years' shortfall amounts
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38. The scheme of amalgamation of the Company with Prime Focus Academy of Media and Entertainment Studies Private Limited
("PFAMES"), wholly owned subsidiary of the Company was filed with Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") during the year.
The NCLT pronounced the order on July 04, 2024, sanctioning / approving the aforesaid Scheme. The effective date of the amalgamation

is April 01, 2023.

PFAMES is a training academy offering specialized courses in visual effects, animation, 3D animation services in Entertainment (M&E)
Industry. The amalgamation is without any consideration. The Company has followed pooling of interest method as per Ind AS 103
(Appendix C), "Business Combinations of entities under commeon control”, accordingly, the financial information in the financial statements
in respect of prior periods have been restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the previous year i.e.

April 1, 2022.
39. Additional Regulatory Informations:

i. Key financial ratios as at

|Ratios : March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 Variation | Reason for
) S [ ___. . varation |
|Current ratio N R | ~ 591

|Debl-Equity Ratio I l 1 {4.91)! 3.30

| Debt service coverage ratio 0.89 | 212 |
(Retur 00 ety o 03 (o4 0% Refernoted |
[Debtors (trade receivable) lumover ratio E— — ] L m— T
Trade payables turnover ratio == 6.19 | 4,81 28%; Refernotef |
Net capital tumover ratio Sl (25.41)| (5.23 386%| Refernotea |
Netprofitratio § i -94%| Refernotee |
{Retum on capital employed __-73%; Refernoteg |
(Retum on investment Refernoteh |

Reasons for variation:
a. Increase in trade receivables and other financial assets as compared to previous year.
b. Increase in borrowing during the year.

c¢. Increase in repayment of borrowings during the year and reduction in earnings as compared to previous year .

d. Decrease in profit for the year as compared to profit in previous year.

e, Increase in trade receivables as compared to previous year.

f. Increase in expenses during the year.

g. Decrease in profit during the year and increase in borrowings during the year.

h. Fixed deposits placed are towards bank guarantees issued. Hence interest on the fixed deposits is not considered as a return on

investment. Accordingly retum on investment is not applicable.
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Formula for computation of aforesaid ratios

1) Current ratio: Current assets / Current liabilities

2) Debt equity ratio: Total debt / Total equity

3) Debt service coverage ratio: Earning before interest, depreciation and tax / Interest + principal repayment of long term borrowings and
Leases

4) Return on equity/ investments: Profit / (Loss} after Tax/ Average equity

5) Debtors (trade receivables) turnaver ratio: Revenue from operations / Average account receivables

6) Trade payables tumover ratio: Total expenses excluding employee cost, interest and depreciation /Average trade payable

7) Net capital tumover ratlo: Revenue from operations / Average working capital

8) Net profit ratia: Profit / (Loss) after tax/ Revenue from operations

9) Return on capital employed: Net profit before interest and tax / Capital Employed (Shareholders Fund + long term borrowings)
10) Return on investment: Profit / (Loss) after tax / Total equity

ii. Other informations:-
a. The Company does not have any benami property held in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the
Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

b. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender or govemment or any
government authority.

¢. The Company has transactions with other companies that are struck off under Section 248 of the Company's Act, 2013 or Section 560
of the Company's Act, 1956.

e — in ¥ Lakhs
Name of the Company |Nature of transactions with struck-| Bal asat Bal asat |
L |off company March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
|Razorblade Pictures Private | lelted' B ______ |Trade Receivables 6.30 11.59 |
Coverage Medla Emerlainmenl F‘nuata L»mlted' ____|Deposits from customers J . 1330} 13, 30
[Blue Crush Pictures Private Limited* ____ TradeReceivables !
‘Paramhans Creation Private rnlted‘ | Deposits from customers L

_ \TradeReceivables |

| Trade Receivables

L ) i \TradeReceivables | 006  0Of

IThrust Communications Private Limited” ___|TradeReceivables | 042} = p42|
ERMEQLB.EM@HMGQ_‘ S |TradePayables | - | - |
{Adbhoot Creatives Private Limited* |Trade Receivables o -_ | -

* Not related party to the Company.

d. The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017.

€. There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as
search or survey), that has not been recorded in the books of account.

f. The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the year.

g. Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium :
(i} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(ii). The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall
- Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
- Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

h. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond
the statutory period.

i. As per the MCA notification dated August 05, 2022, the Central Govemment notified the Companies (Accounts) Fourth Amendment
Rules, 2022. As per the amended rules, the Companies are required to maintain back-up of the books of account and other relevant
books and papers in electronic mode that should be accessible in India at all times. Also, the Companies are required to create backup of
the books of accounts on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.
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40. Event after reporting period
Thare were no events after the reporting period which require adjustment in amounts recognised or disclosures in financlal statements.

41, Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on September 30, 2024.

Sea accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-41
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

K%‘Ay;fu& Ko&w | ’

Merzin Tavaria Delna Dhamodiwala
Whole-time Director Director

DIN 07015823 DIN 09824579

Place ;: Mumbal Place : Mumbai
Vikas Rathee Saurin Shah

Chief Financlal Officor Company Secretary
DIN 07015635 Place: Mumbal
Place : London

Date: September 30, 2024




